
 Posting Date: 03-31-2023 

P a g e  1 | 4 

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR BI-MONTHLY MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: 

TIME:  

LOCATIONS: 

04-04-2023

6:00 p.m. – Meeting Begins (Public) 
6:01 p.m. or Thereafter - Closed Session (Only Board and Staff) 
6:30 p.m. – Open Session (Public) 

This meeting will be held in-person and virtually. 

Open Session Closed Session Virtually 
Marin Water  
Board Room 
220 Nellen Avenue 
Corte Madera, CA 94925 

Marin Water  
Mt. Tam Conference Rm. 
220 Nellen Avenue 
Corte Madera, CA 94925 

URL: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88134852296 

Webinar ID: 881 3485 2296 
Phone Call: 1-669-444-9171 or 

1-669-900-6833

EMAILED PUBLIC COMMENTS: You may submit your comments in advance of the meeting by 
emailing them to BoardComment@MarinWater.org. All emailed comments received by 3:00 
p.m. on the day of the meeting will be provided to the Board of Directors prior to the meeting.
All emails will be posted on our website. (Please do not include personal information in your
comment that you do not want published on our website such as phone numbers and home
addresses.)

PARTICIPATION DURING MEETINGS: 
In-person Attendee: Fill out a speaker card prior to the meeting and place it in the container for 
a District staffer to collect. List the number of the agenda item(s), which you would like to 
provide a comment.  

The board secretary will call first the in-person attendees. Once your name or identifiable mark 
is called, go to the lectern, and you have up to three (3) minutes to provide a comment. After 
your comment or after the timer goes off, please go back to your seat.  

Virtual Attendee: Click on the “raise hand” button on the bottom of the Zoom screen. If you are 
joining by phone and would like to comment, press *9 and staff will call on you by the last four 
digits of your phone number. Virtual attendees will be called upon after the in-person 
attendees.  

(Note: The board president may shorten the amount of time for public comment due to large 
numbers of both in-person and virtual attendees.)  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88134852296
mailto:BoardComment@MarinWater.org


*MARIN WATER BOARD OF DIRECTORS ORDER OF ROLL CALL: MATT SAMSON, JED SMITH, RANJIV KHUSH, LARRY RUSSELL, AND 
MONTY SCHMITT

P a g e  2 | 4 

AGENDA ITEMS RECOMMENDATIONS 
Call to Order and Roll Call* 

Adoption of Agenda Approve 

Public Comment – Only on Items on the Closed Session 

Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, and time limits may be reduced 
by the board president to accommodate the number of speakers and ensure that the 
meeting is conducted in an efficient manner. 

Convene to Closed Session at after 6:01 p.m. 
(Only the Board of Directors and staff will participate) 

Closed Session Items 

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators
(Government Code §54956.8)

Agency Negotiator: Bennett Horenstein, General Manager
Negotiating Party: PG&E
Property: APN 197-120-10 (Lease 15)
Under negotiation: Price and Terms

Convene to Open Session at or after 6:30 p.m. 

Closed Session Report Out 

Public Comment - Items Not on the Agenda 

Members of the public may comment on any items not listed on the agenda during this time. 
Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, and time limits may be reduced 
by the board president to accommodate the number of speakers and ensure that the 
meeting is conducted in an efficient manner. 

Directors’ and General Manager’s Announcements 
(6:40 p.m. – Time Approximate) 

Consent Calendar (6:45 p.m. – Time Approximate) 

All matters listed on the consent calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted 
by a single action of the Board, unless specific items are removed from the consent calendar 
by the Board during adoption of the agenda for separate discussion and action. 



 

*MARIN WATER BOARD OF DIRECTORS ORDER OF ROLL CALL: MATT SAMSON, JED SMITH, RANJIV KHUSH, LARRY RUSSELL, AND 
MONTY SCHMITT 

P a g e  3 | 4 
 

AGENDA ITEMS RECOMMENDATIONS 
2. Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Special Meeting of March 

14, 2023, and Regular Meeting of March 21, 2023   
 

Approve 

3. Resolution Awarding Contract No. 1992 to Advanced 
Geotechniques Inc. for the Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall 
Project 
 

Approve  

4. Adopt Positions on State Senate Bill 23 (Caballero) & 
Assembly Bill 30 (Ward) 
 

Approve 

5. Update Board Reserve and ADA Grievance Policies 
 

Approve 
 

6. Resolution Granting Settlement Authority to the District 
General Manager and Risk Management Committee for 
Certain Claims and Pending Litigation 
 

Approve 
 

7. Consent to Assignment of Lease Agreement No. Lease 61 
with Sprint Spectrum Reality Company, LLC to VB Run, LLC 
 

Approve 
 

8. Request to Fill Two (2) Summer Helpers and 14 Watershed 
Aide Positions 
 

Approve 
 

Regular Calendar (6:50 p.m. – Time Approximate) 
 

 

9. Adopt a Resolution Awarding Contract No. 1994 for 
Furnishing and Delivery of Welded Steel Pipe to West Coast 
Pipe Linings Inc. (Approximate time 15 minutes) 
 

Approve 

10. Redwood Blvd and Loma Alta Landslide Update 
(Approximate time 20 minutes) 
 

Information 

11. Resolution for Grant Funding through the Federal 
WaterSMART Program (Approximate time 20 minutes) 
 

Approve 

12. Future Meeting Schedule and Agenda Items  
(Approximate time 5 minutes) 
 

Information 

Adjournment (7:50 p.m. – Time Approximate) 

 
 
 



 

*MARIN WATER BOARD OF DIRECTORS ORDER OF ROLL CALL: MATT SAMSON, JED SMITH, RANJIV KHUSH, LARRY RUSSELL, AND 
MONTY SCHMITT 

P a g e  4 | 4 
 

ADA NOTICE AND HEARING IMPAIRED PROVISIONS:  
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Law, it is Marin 
Water’s policy to offer its public programs, services, and meetings in a manner that is readily 
accessible to everyone, including those with disabilities. If you are an individual with a disability 
and require a copy of a public hearing notice, an agenda, and/or agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, or if you require other accommodations, please contact Board 
Secretary Terrie Gillen at 415.945.1448, at least two days in advance of the meeting. Advance 
notification will enable Marin Water to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 
 
INFORMATION AGENDAS ARE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW AT THE CIVIC CENTER LIBRARY, CORTE 
MADERA LIBRARY, FAIRFAX LIBRARY, MILL VALLEY LIBRARY, MARIN WATER OFFICE, AND ON 
THE MARIN WATER WEBSITE (MARINWATER.ORG) 
 
FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS (BOTH IN-PERSON AND VIRTUAL): 

 
Dates Meetings 
Tuesday, April 18, 2023 
6:30 p.m.  

• Regular Bi-Monthly Meeting of the Board of Directors 
- Closed Session to immediately follow Open Session. 
 

Friday, April 21, 2023 
9:30 a.m. 
 

• Operations Committee/Board of Directors (Operations) 
Meeting 

Thursday, April 27, 2023 
9:30 a.m. 

• Finance & Administration Committee/ 
Board of Directors (Finance & Administration) Meeting 
 

 
 
 
 

                                                                                                               _____________________ 
                                                                                                                         Board Secretary 



Item Number: 02 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors  

 

P a g e  1 | 1 
 

Approval Item  
 

TITLE 
Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Special Meeting of March 14, 2023 and Regular Bi-Monthly 
Meeting of March 21, 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the adoption of the minutes  
 
SUMMARY 
On March 14th, the Board of Directors held a special meeting for a closed session. Then, the 
following week, the Board held its regular meeting on March 21st. The minutes of those 
meetings are attached. 
 
DISCUSSION 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Special Meeting of March 14, 2023 – Closed Session 
2. Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Regular Bi-Monthly Meeting of March 21, 2023 

 

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Communications & Public 
Affairs Department 

 
 

 

 

 

 Terrie Gillen 
Board Secretary 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 

 

 



  Item Number: 02 
                                                                                                                                                 Attachment: 01 
 

1 
 

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, March 14, 2023 

 
 

Via In-Person and Virtually 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
President Monty Schmitt called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m.  
  

Directors Present:  Larry Russell, Jed Smith, and Monty Schmitt   
    

 Directors Absent: Ranjiv Khush and Matt Samson 
     
(Note:  Directors Ranjiv Khush and Matt Samson were not present. They had recused 

themselves from participating in the Closed Session.) 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
On motion made by Director Smith and seconded by President Schmitt, the board adopted 
the agenda. 
 
Ayes: Directors Russell, Smith, and Schmitt 
Noes: None 
Absent: Director Khush and Samson 
 
There were no public comments on the adoption of the agenda. 
 

Open Session Locations: 
 

Closed Session Location: 

Marin Water - Board Room 
220 Nellen Avenue 
Corte Madera, California 94925 
 

And 
 

200 Martinique Avenue 
Tiburon, California 94920 

Marin Water – Mt. Tam Conference Room 
220 Nellen Avenue 
Corte Madera, California 94925 



 
 

2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – ONLY ON ITEM ON THE CLOSED SESSION 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION  
 
The directors convened to Closed Session at 7:08 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM 
 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
(California Government Code Section §54956.9) 
 

Coalition of Sensible Taxpayers vs Marin Municipal Water District 
Case No.: CIV 1903160 
 

CONVENE TO OPEN SESSION  
 
The board convened to Open Session at 8:00 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT 
 
President Schmitt reported that there was no reportable action. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Without any further comments from the board or the public, the special meeting adjourned 
at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 

       ___________________________ 
        Board Secretary 



Item Number: 02 
                                                                                                                                                               Attachment: 02 

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 

 
Via In-Person and Virtually 

 
 
 
 
 
                        
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

President Monty Schmitt called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Room.  
  

Directors Present:  Larry Russell, Matt Samson, Jed Smith, Ranjiv Khush, and Monty 
Schmitt 

    
 Directors Absent: None 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

On motion made by Director Smith and seconded by Vice President Khush, the board adopted 
the agenda. 
 
Ayes: Directors Russell, Samson, Smith, Khush, and Schmitt 
Noes: None 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
During the meeting, this item was inadvertently skipped, but then Presiden Schmitt went back 
to it during the board announcements and committee reports.  
 
There were four (4) comments from the public.    
 
DIRECTORS' AND GENERAL MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

• Director Russell provided a committee report from the Operations Committee Meeting 
of March 10. 

 

Marin Water (Open Session) 
Board Room 
220 Nellen Avenue 
Corte Madera, California 94925 
 

and Marin Water (Closed Session) 
Mt. Tam Conference Room 
220 Nellen Avenue 
Corte Madera, California 94925 



2 

• Vice President Khush provided examples of recently announced federal Water 
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) loans and state Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) grant funding of water infrastructure projects in the Bay Area.  
 

• Director Samson provided a committee report from the Watershed Committee Meeting 
of March 16. He also mentioned that he attended the Lagunitas Creek TAC meeting on 
March 17.  
 

• General Manager Ben Horenstein reported on the worsening of a slide (Old White Hill 
Grade) that contained a welded steel transmission line, which was the main water 
transport from the San Geronimo Treatment Plant to Fairfax line. The District is 
monitoring the site to ensure that the transmission line remains protected.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS 1-8) 
 
Item 1 Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Special Meeting of February 28, 2023 and 

Regular Board Meeting of March 7, 2023 
 
Item 2 General Manager’s Report February 2023 

Item 3 Award of Contract No. 1993, 2023 San Rafael Concrete Culvert Repair Project, 
to Pacific Underground Services, to Repair a Section of a Concrete Storm Drain 
Box Culvert on Bayview Street (Resolution No. 8738) 

Item 4 Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement MA-5963, with 
Woodard & Curran, Inc., for Grant Funding Assistance and Engineering Services 
During Construction of the Pine Mountain Tunnel Tanks Replacement Project 

Item 5 Professional Services Agreement with National Response Team for Water 
Remediation and Restoration Services 

Item 6 New Lease Agreement for West Point Inn with the West Point Inn Association 

Item 7 Amendment to Extend the Term of the At-Will Employment Agreement of 
Molly L. MacLean as the General Counsel of the Marin Muncipal Water District 

Item 8 Request to Fill Financial Management Analyst Position in the Administrative 
Services Division 

 

 

 



3 

On motion made by Director Smith and seconded by Vice President Khush, the board approved 
the Consent Calendar. 
 
Ayes: Directors Russell, Samson, Smith, Khush, and Schmitt 
Noes: None 
 
There were no public comments for the Consent Calendar items.  
 
REGULAR CALENDAR (ITEMS 9 - 12)  
 
Item 9 Resolution for Grant Funding for the Federal WaterSMART Program  
 (Resolution No. 8739) 
 
Grant and Legislative Coordinator Matt Sagues presented this item. Discussion ensued. 
 
 There were three (3) public comments. 
 
On motion made by Vice President Khush and seconded by President Schmitt, the board 
approved the resolution. 
 
Ayes: Directors Russell, Samson, Khush, and Schmitt 
Noes: None 
Abstain: Director Smith 
 
Item 10 Water Supply and Roadmap Update 
 
Water Resources Director Paul Sellier presented this item showing the current water supply 
conditions and water supply forecast. Then, he spoke about the goals of the roadmap, the main 
elements of the integrated study, and early actions to implement the roadmap.  
 
Much discussion between the board and staff occurred throughout the presentation.  
 
There were six public comments. 
 
This was an information item. The board did not take any formal action. 
 
Item 11 Post Retreat Follow Up 
 
General Manager Horenstein provided a presentation of each department’s annual goals and 
would give updates on these goals to the committees and then to the board. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
There were no public comments.    
 



4 

This was an information item. The board did not take formal action.  
 
Item 12 Future Meeting Schedule and Agenda Items 
 
The board secretary reported on upcoming internal and external meetings.  
 
There was no public comment.    
 
This was an informational item. The board did not take any formal action.  
 
Afterwards, the board moved to Closed Session. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – ONLY ON ITEMS ON THE CLOSED SESSION 
 
There were two (2) public comments.  
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION  
 
The directors convened to Closed Session at approximately 9:04 p.m. and went to the Mt. Tam 
Conference Room.  
 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM 
 
13.  Conference with Labor Negotiator  

(Government Code §54957.6) 
 

Agency Designated Representative: Ben Horenstein, General Manager 
Employee Organizations:  Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; 
Unrepresented Employees 

 
CONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
The board came back from the Mt. Tam Conference Room to the Board Room and reconvened 
to Open Session at 10:25 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT 
 
President Schmitt announced that the Closed Session adjourned at 10:24 p.m. and there were 
no reportable actions taken. 
 
 
 
 



5 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Board of Directors’ Reglar Meeting of March 21, 2023,  
adjourned at 10:25 p.m.        
 
 
                                ___________________________ 

                          Board Secretary 



Item Number: 03 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting:  Board of Directors  

 

P a g e  1 | 4 
 

Approval Item  
 

TITLE 
Award of Contract No. 1992, for the Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall Project (Project), to 
Advanced Geotechniques Inc., for Furnishing All Labor, Equipment and Materials for the Site 
Clearing, Excavation and Installation of a Retaining Wall in support of the Azalea Hill Trail 
Restoration Plan, on the Marin Water Watershed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve a resolution awarding Contract No. 1992, for the Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall 
Project to Advanced Geotechniques Inc. in an amount equal to $297,550 and authorizing the 
General Manager to execute any necessary amendments to Contract No. 1992, which do not 
exceed $74,000 
 
SUMMARY 
The Operations Committee reviewed this item on February 17, 2023, and referred it to a future 
Regular Bi-Monthly Meeting of the Board of Directors to proceed with the Project construction. 

On March 28, 2023, the District received and opened four (4) bids for the Project to furnish all 
labor, equipment and materials for the site clearing and excavation of approximately 150 cubic 
yards of hillside, site grading, drainage improvement and installation of a solider pile retaining 
wall with concrete lagging, guardrail and implementation of erosion control in support of the 
Azalea Hill Trail Restoration Plan.  Advanced Geotechniques Inc. submitted the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid in the amount of $297,550.  Therefore, staff recommends that 
the Board of Directors approve a resolution awarding Contract No. 1992 to Advanced 
Geotechniques Inc. in the amount of $297,550 and authorizing the General Manager to execute 
any necessary amendments to Contract No. 1992, which do not exceed $74,000. 
 
DISCUSSION 
This contract includes all labor, equipment and materials for the site clearing and excavation of 
approximately 150 cubic yards of soil from the hillside, site grading, drainage improvement and 
installation of a solider pile retaining wall with concrete lagging, guardrail and implementation 
of erosion control in support of the Azalea Hill Trail Restoration Plan.  
  
On March 28, 2023, the District received and opened four (4) bids for the Project. Bid results 
are provided in the Bid Results table shown below. 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                             Item Number: 03 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2022 

 

P a g e  2 | 4 
 

Bid Results 
Azalea Hill Retaining Wall Replacement Project 

 

Bid Rank Contractor Name Bid Amount 
1. Advanced Geotechniques Inc. $297,550 
2. Farallon Company Engineering $382,010 
3. W R Forde Associates $418,332 
4. Westward Builders Non-Responsive 

 

Contract No: 1992 
Project No: R17008 
Engineer’s Estimate: $490,000 

Advanced Geotechniques Inc. submitted the lowest responsive and responsible bid.  They hold 
a Class A C57 – General Engineering License, License No. 956847, which is current and active 
and expires on 01/31/2025.  As required by State Law, Advanced Geotechniques Inc. is 
registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations under PWCR Number 
1000020403. Following contract award, District staff will register the Project with the California 
Department of Industrial Relations.   

Summaries of the estimated Project costs and schedule are provided below. 

Budget: 
Contract Award:  $297,550 
25% Contingency: $74,000 
Materials and Professional Fees: $60,000 
District Labor/Inspection: $60,000 
Total Budget: $491,550  
Budgetary Category: A1F06 
 
Project Implementation: 

Project Advertisement: March 9, 2023 
Bid Opening: March 28, 2023 
Project Award: April 4, 2023 
Estimated Completion Date:  July 14, 2022 
Duration: 100 days 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  
The Project is subject to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
On May 14, 2019 the District Board approved Resolution No. 8533 which adopted a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 
Amendment of the Mt. Tamalpais Watershed Road and Trail Management Plan, which included 



                                                                                                                             Item Number: 03 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2022 

 

P a g e  3 | 4 
 

the Restoration of Azalea Hill and approved Resolution No. 8534 which approved the Project 
and amended the Mt. Tamalpais Watershed Road and Trail Management – Restoration of 
Azalea Hill.  This Project is all within the scope of the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the 
mitigation identified therein will be implemented in conjunction with the Project. 
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH EFFORTS 
The District’s multi-step process for notifying customers about this Project began on October 8, 
2018, when the Marin Municipal Water District  initiated an agency and public review period 
for the subsequent Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the 
Amendment of the Mt. Tamalpais Watershed Road and Trail Management Plan for the 
Restoration of Azalea Hill. Public outreach steps to be taken for this Project are described in the 
table below. 
 

Department Action 
Public Information Issue news release to local media (print and online outlets). 
Public Information Post on MMWD website. 
Public Information Post on MMWD Nextdoor page for affected neighborhoods. 
Public Information Send notice to County of Marin for posting on their website. 
Engineering  Provide signage at Project site throughout construction period. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total cost to complete the Azalea Hill Retaining Wall Project is estimated at $491,500. The 
District has been awarded a grant from State Parks Recreational Trails Program for $952,656 to 
support Phase III of the Azalea Hill Trail Restoration Project. The Board approved Resolution No. 
8583 in July of 2020, confirming the District’s commitment to the Azalea Hill Trail Project, 
approving the filing of the application, and appointed the General Manager as the agent to 
negotiate and execute grant and related agreements for this funding. The original grant 
awarded $700,000, but in response to recent construction costs increases staff submitted a 
supplemental request funds to support construction of this Project. The new total grant 
amount is $952,656 with a required District match of $130,514 (13.7%). The District has 
sufficient funds budgeted in FY 2021 Capital Project R-17008 - Fund center A1F06- Fund 20 to 
match the grant request.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
1. Proposed resolution 
2. Site Map 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                             Item Number: 03 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2022 

 

P a g e  4 | 4 
 

 

DIVISION OR DEPARTMENT DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Engineering 
 

 

 

 

 

 Crystal Yezman 
Director of Engineering 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 

 



Item Number: 03 
Attachment: 01 

 

Resolution  Page | 1  
 

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
APPROVING AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT NO. 1992 TO ADVANCED 
GEOTECHNIQUES INC. FOR THE AZALEA HILL TRAIL RETAINING WALL PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, on March 9, 2023, the District advertised Contract No. 1992, for 

the Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall Project (R17008), which will include furnishing all 
labor, equipment and materials for the site clearing and excavation of approximately 
150 cubic yards from the hillside, site grading, drainage improvement and 
installation of a solider pile retaining wall with concrete lagging, guardrail and 
implementation of erosion control in support of the Azalea Hill Trail Restoration 
Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District received and publicly opened four (4) bids on March 

28, 2023, of which Advanced Geotechniques Inc. bid of $297,550 was the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESOLVES that: 

 
1. The bid of $297,550 submitted by Advanced Geotechniques Inc., for the 

Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall Project under Contract No. 1992 
(“Contract”) was the lowest responsive and responsible bid submitted 
therefor, and said bid is hereby accepted. 
 

2. A Contract for the Project be awarded to said low bidder, and the General 
Manager is authorized and directed to execute said Contract on behalf of 
the District upon receipt of a performance bond, payment bond, proof of 
insurance, and the executed contract for the work from said bidder. 
 

3. The General Manager is authorized to execute any and all future 
amendments to the Contract, which he deems necessary, without further 
Board approval, so long as those amendments to the Contract amount 
does not exceed $74,000. 
 

  



Resolution  Page | 2  
 

4. Upon complete execution of said Contract, the bonds and/or checks of 
the other bidders are to be returned to said other bidders, and all bids 
other than that of Advanced Geotechniques Inc., are to be rejected. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of April, 2023, by the following vote of 

the Board of Directors. 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
 

_______________________________ 
Monty Schmitt 
President, Board of Directors 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Terrie Gillen 
Board Secretary 



Item Number: 03
   Attachment: 02



Item Number: 04 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 | 3 

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Adopt Positions on State Senate Bill 23 (Caballero) and State Assembly Bill 30 (Ward) 

RECOMMENDATION 
1. Adopt a position of “Watch” for Senate Bill 23 (Caballero), which would streamline

regulatory processes for new water supply and flood control projects.
2. Adopt a position of “Support” for Assembly Bill 30 (Ward), which would expand the

Department of Water Resources Atmospheric Rivers Program to include forecast-
informed reservoir operations (FIRO) and integrate FIRO into Department of Water
Resources (DWR) water supply operations and flood and hazard risk mitigation efforts.

SUMMARY 
As part of the effort of Marin Water staff to regularly track state and federal legislation, which 
may affect District interests, staff requested the Finance & Administration Committee to review 
and refer the proposed adoption of Board positions on Senate Bill (SB) 23 and Assembly Bill 
(AB) 30 to a regular bi-monthly meeting of the Board of Directors.  

DISCUSSION 

Legislative Recommended Positions 

State Legislation: SB 23 (Caballero) Water supply and flood risk reduction projects: 
expedited permitting 

ACWA Position: Support and Co-Sponsor 

Recommended Position: Watch 

Status: Introduced 

This bill would streamline the regulatory permitting process for water supply and flood risk 
reduction projects. This bill, if successful, would be an important piece of legislation to help 
reduce costs and impediments for water supply solutions for the District. The Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA) is sponsoring Senate Bill 23.  According to ACWA’s bill 
analysis (Attachment 2), SB 23 would streamline the regulatory permitting of water supply 
projects in four ways: 

• Reform the process by which an application for a Section 401 Water Quality Certification
is deemed complete;



Item Number: 04 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

• Require the review and approval of Section 401 Water Quality Certifications and Lake
and Streambed Alteration Agreements to be completed within 180 days of submittal of
a complete permit application;

• Avoid duplicative planning efforts by allowing certain watershed management plans
that are already developed and implemented to be used for mitigation required through
Section 401 Water Quality Certifications; and

• Allow project applicants to voluntarily contribute resources to state permitting agencies
in order to provide agencies with additional resources to meet the permitting.

After bringing this legislation to the Finance Committee on March 28th, the Committee 
requested the item be referred to a regular Board Meeting  with a proposed  “watch” position, 
and continue to track SB 23 as it makes its way through the legislative session.   

State Legislation: AB 30 (Ward) Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and Climate 
Forecasting Program 

ACWA Position: Support  

Recommended Position: Support 

Status: Introduced  

This bill from Assemblymember Ward (D-San Diego) would expand the Department of Water 
Resources Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and Climate Forecasting Program (AR 
Program) to include forecast-informed reservoir operations (FIRO) and integrate FIRO into 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) water supply operations and flood and hazard risk 
mitigation efforts. The bill would also advance DWR’s atmospheric river forecast capabilities 
and include refined climate projections for various environmental conditions. 
This bill has the strong support from Sonoma Water, and is formally supported by ACWA. The 
District receives approximately 25% of its water from Sonoma Water., and would benefit from 
improved reservoir operations that are informed by FIRO.  

 After bringing this legislation to the Finance Committee on March 28th, the Committee referred 
this item to a regular Board meeting for adoption of a “support” position on this legislation.  If 
adopted by the full Board, the position of support will be communicated to the bill’s author as 
well as to District state legislative representatives.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact for these actions to our FY23/24 budget.  

P a g e  2 | 3 



Item Number: 04 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

P a g e  3 l 3 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
1. ACWA analysis for Assembly Bill 30 (Ward)
2. ACWA analysis of Senate Bill 23 (Caballero)
3. Legislative Positions

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Watershed Division 
  

Shaun Horne 
Watershed Resources Manager 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 



AB 30: Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and 
Climate Forecasting Program
Author: Ward (D-San Diego) Introduced: 12-05-2022 Amended: N/A 

Sponsors:  
San Diego County Water Agency 
Sonoma Water Agency 

Current Position: 
NYC 

Recommended Position: 
Support 

Assigned to: Cindy Tuck/Richard Filgas 

Existing Law 
Existing law establishes the Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and Climate Forecasting 
Program (Program) in the Department of Water Resources (DWR). Existing law requires DWR, 
upon an appropriation of special fund moneys, to conduct research relating to climate 
forecasting and the causes and impacts that climate change has on atmospheric rivers. Existing 
law also requires DWR to take actions within its existing authority to operate reservoirs in a 
manner that improves flood protection and to reoperate flood control and water storage 
facilities to capture water generated by atmospheric rivers. 

Bill Summary 
AB 30 would rename the Program the Atmospheric Rivers Research and Forecast Improvement 
Program: Enabling Climate Adaptation Through Forecast-Informed Reservoir Operations and 
Hazard Resiliency (AR/FIRO) Program (Program). The bill would require DWR to research, 
develop, and implement new observations, prediction models, novel forecasting methods, and 
tailored decision support systems to improve predictions of atmospheric rivers and their 
impacts on water supply, flooding, post-wildfire debris flows, and environmental conditions. 

The bill would require DWR to take all actions within its existing authority to operate reservoirs 
in a manner that improves flood protection in the State and to reoperate flood control and 
water storage facilities to capture water generated by atmospheric rivers, thereby increasing 
water supply, hydropower availability, and the reliability of water resources in the State, and to 
consider refined climate projections of extreme weather and water events and changes in 
Sierra snow. 

Amendment History 
N/A 

Staff Comments: “Atmospheric rivers” are long narrow bands of atmospheric water vapor 
pushed along by strong winds.  They are prevalent over the Pacific Ocean and can deliver to the 
Western United States much of its precipitation during just a small number of individual winter 

Item Number: 04
   Attachment: 01



storms. Atmospheric rivers are the source of most of the West Coast’s heaviest rains and floods 
and are a main contributor to water supply. 

SB 758 (Chapter 682, Statutes of 2015) established the Program at DWR as summarized in the 
existing law section of this analysis. ACWA did not take a position on SB 758. Since the 
enactment of SB 758, ACWA and many of its member agencies have recognized how 
atmospheric river research and the improved forecasting enabled by that research can improve 
reservoir operation and flood protection. 

As a result of the coordination of climate science and monitoring efforts by the Center for 
Western Weather and Water Extremes (CW3E) at Scripps Institution of Oceanography at the 
University of California San Diego and federal, state, and local agencies, the development of 
Forecast-Informed Reservoir Operations (FIRO) has emerged as an important climate resilience 
strategy. Early projects implemented by ACWA member agencies (e.g., Sonoma Water Agency, 
Orange County Water District and Turlock Irrigation District) have shown water management 
benefits from atmospheric river forecasting. 

The ACWA Board of Directors included in ACWA’s Five-Year Strategic Plan (for 2020-2024) the 
following advocacy objective: 

21st Century Forecasting and Climate Adaptation:  Promote federal, state and local 
agency use of the latest technology to model the impacts of climate change and 
Atmospheric Rivers on precipitation, timing and type of runoff, needed water 
storage and optimization of conveyance to meet future water needs. Seek ongoing 
federal and state funding for Atmospheric River research and Forecast-Informed 
Reservoir Operations to improve state and local water management (…). 

This bill is a reintroduction of AB 2078 (Flora, 2022), which ACWA supported. As introduced, AB 
2078 included language for a $10 million appropriation from the General Fund for the purposes 
of funding the Program. This appropriation, however, was removed from the bill because the 
focus shifted to pursuing funds in the State Budget (see below). AB 2078 ultimately died on the 
Assembly Appropriations suspense file. 

ACWA is part of an atmospheric river research coalition that includes ACWA member 
agencies and that advocates for funding for the DWR program. As a result of the coalition’s 
advocacy and support, AB 179 “Budget Act of 2022” (Chapter 249, Statutes of 2022) 
includes $16.75 million in ongoing funding for FIRO. DWR’s May Revise Budget Change 
Proposal indicates that of this amount, $10 million is allocated for FIRO and $7 million is 
allocated for snow data collection. ACWA’s understanding is that the $10 million for FIRO 
for 2022 is already under contract with CW3E. While the coalition’s strategy for 2023 
includes AB 30, the coalition will likely also advocate for additional funding for the Program 
in the Fiscal Year 2023-’24 Budget process. 

Recommended Position: Support 



AB 30 would appropriately update the name and description of this important program and 
delete the reference to funds coming from “special funds.” (Special funds do not include the 
General Fund.) In addition, this bill aligns with the above-quoted ACWA advocacy objective. For 
these reasons, ACWA staff recommend adoption of a “support” position.  

Support: N/A Opposition: N/A 



23 

SB 23: Water supply and flood risk reduction projects: 
expedited permitting.
Author: Caballero (D-
Merced) 

Introduced: 12-05-2022 Amended: N/A 

Sponsors:  
Association of California 
Water Agencies 

Current Position: 
Sponsor 

Recommended Position: 
Sponsor 

Assigned to: Kristopher Anderson/Richard Filgas  

Existing Law 

Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreements 

Existing law prohibits an entity from diverting or obstructing the natural flow of, or substantially 
changing or using any material from the bed, channel, or banks of, a river, stream, or lake, or 
depositing or disposing of debris, waste, or other material containing crumbled, flaked, or 
ground pavement where it may pass into a river, stream, or lake, unless the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) receives written notification regarding the activity and 
the CDFW either determines that the activity will not substantially adversely affect an existing 
fish and wildlife resource or, if the CDFW determines that the activity may substantially 
adversely affect an existing fish and wildlife resource, the CDFW issues a final agreement to the 
entity that includes reasonable measures necessary to protect the affected resource. 

California Environmental Quality Act 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires a lead agency, as defined, to prepare, 
or cause to be prepared, and certify the completion of an environmental impact report (EIR) on 
a project that it proposes to carry out or approve that may have a significant effect on the 
environment or to adopt a negative declaration if it finds that the project will not have that 
effect. CEQA also requires a lead agency to prepare a mitigated negative declaration for a 
project that may have a significant effect on the environment if revisions in the project would 
avoid or mitigate that effect and there is no substantial evidence that the project, as revised, 
would have a significant effect on the environment. CEQA establishes administrative 
procedures for the review and certification of the EIR for a project and judicial review 
procedures for any action or proceeding brought to challenge the lead agency’s decision to 
certify the EIR or to grant project approvals. 

Item Number: 04
   Attachment: 02



24 

Section 401 Water Quality Certifications 

Existing law designates the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) as that 
state water pollution control agency for purposes of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
and authorizes the State Water Board to issue a certificate or statement under the federal act 
that there is reasonable assurance that an activity of a person subject to the jurisdiction of the 
State Water Board will not reduce water quality below applicable standards. 

Existing law requires specified persons to file with the appropriate Regional Water Quality 
Control Board a report of waste discharge relative to any material change or propose change in 
the character, location, or volume of discharge into the waters of the state. Existing law 
requires the Regional Water Quality Control Board to prescribe requirements as to the nature 
of any proposed discharge, existing discharge, or material change in an existing discharge, as 
specified. 

Bill Summary 

As introduced on December 5, 2022, SB 23 is a spot bill that states the following: 

It is the intent of the Legislature to enact subsequent legislation to expedite the regulatory 
permitting process for water supply and flood risk reduction projects, consistent with 
“California’s Water Supply Strategy, Adapting to a Hotter, Drier Future,” released by Governor 
Newsom’s administration in August 2022. 

Below is a summary of the substantive language that will be amended into SB 23. This language 
has been submitted to the Office of Legislative Counsel and is expected to be in print in the 
coming weeks. For the purposes of this bill, “water board” means either the State Water Board 
or the Regional Board, as applicable, that issues a project certification.  

Definitions 

Provisions of SB 23 would apply to the following projects: 

• “Flood risk reduction projects,” which include a project or plan that is proposed by a
public agency or a public utility, to construct, alter, retrofit, maintain, manage, or
improve a facility, channel, levee, or flood control modification, in which flood risk
reduction or sea level rise protection is an objective of the project.

• “Water Supply Project,” which includes a project or plan proposed by a public agency or
a public utility, to construct, alter, retrofit, maintain, manage, or improve a groundwater
recharge, desalination, recycled water, water conveyance, surface water storage,
stormwater capture, or water treatment facility.

Section 1 – Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement 



 
 

25 
 

SB 23 would require CDFW to issue a final Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (LSAA) 
within 180 days of receipt of a notification from a project proponent for water supply and flood 
risk reduction projects, provided that: 
 

1) CDFW determines that the project will substantially adversely affect an existing fish and 
wildlife resource; 

2) The project proponent submits a complete notification for the project; and  
3) The project proponent completes and submits completed environmental 

documentation to CDFW for the project.  
 
The final LSAA would include any reasonable measures mutually agreed to by the project 
proponent and CDFW in accordance with existing law. If CDFW and the project proponent are 
not able to reach a final agreement on all measures, then the project proponent may proceed 
in accordance with a final agreement issued by an arbitration panel, including reasonable 
measures necessary to protect the existing fish and wildlife resources substantially adversely 
affected by the project. 
 
The bill would allow CDFW and the project proponent to mutually agree to an extension for 
issuance of a final agreement, in which case, the 180-day time period would not apply. 
 
SB 23 would specify that this section only applies to water supply projects and flood risk 
reduction projects subject to CDFW jurisdiction under Fish and Game Code Division 2, Chapter 6 
(section 1600-1616).  
 
Section 2 – Section 401 Water Quality Certification 
 
If a proponent for a flood risk reduction or water supply project is required to obtain a Section 
401 Water Quality Certification, this bill would create an optional permitting process, allowing 
the proponent to decide whether to utilize this process. If the project proponent opts to utilize 
this process, the following requirements apply: 
 
The bill would require the water board to issue project certification within 180 days after a 
project proponent does all the following: 
 

1) Requests pre-application consultation; 
2) Files a complete application for project certification;  
3) If required for the project, files a complete application or petition under Water Code 

Chapter 2 (section 1250 to 1276) for all water rights approvals or amendments 
necessary to implement the project; and 

4) Completes and submits completed environmental documentation to the water board 
for the project certification required under CEQA. 

 
Pre-application Consultation Process 
 



26 

The bill would require a project applicant to request a pre-application consultation with the 
appropriate water board at least 60 days before filing its application for project certification. 
The bill would require consultation meetings between the applicant and water board to occur 
no less frequently than once every 60 days thereafter until the project is fully certified.  

Application Completion Process 

SB 23 would create the following procedures and requirements to govern the water board’s 
determination of whether an application is complete: 

1) Water Board Response to Submitted Application

After the project proponent has submitted an application or petition for project
certification, the water board would be required to notify the proponent within 30 days,
in writing, whether the application is complete. If the application is determined to be
incomplete, the water board would be required to provide the project proponent with a
written notification that includes a full list of specific items that were complete and that
were incomplete and indicates the manner in which incomplete items can be made
complete. The water board would also be required to provide the applicant a list and
thorough description of the specific information needed to complete the application or
petition. After the water board issues the list, the bill would prohibit the water board
from requesting or requiring the project proponent to provide any new or additional
information that was not specifically identified in the initial list of items found to be
incomplete.

If the water board does not provide the applicant with a written notification that
includes the required information 30 days after receipt of the application or petition,
the bill would require the application or petition to be deemed complete.

2) Applicant Response to Water Board Notification

If the water board provides the written notification required by paragraph (1)
determining that the application or petition is incomplete, the project proponent would
be required to submit supplemental materials needed to complete the application or
appeal the determination within 45 days after receipt of the notification.

3) Water Board Response to Supplemental Materials

Within 30 days after receipt of supplemental materials from the project proponent, the
bill would require the water board to determine the completeness of the application or
petition as supplemented and whether to issue the notification of complete application
required by this section.



27 

If the supplemental application or petition is again determined not to be complete, the 
water board would be required to provide the project proponent with a written 
notification specifying those parts of the supplemented application or petition that are 
still incomplete and indicate the manner in which they can be made complete, including 
a full list and thorough description of the specific information needed to complete the 
application or petition. 

If the water board does not, within 30 days of receipt of application materials from 
applicant, provide the project proponent with a written notification specifying those 
parts of the supplemented application or petition that are still incomplete and indicating 
the manner in which they can be made complete, the bill would require the application 
or petition, as supplemented, to be deemed complete. 

4) Applicant Response to Subsequent Water Board Notification

If the water board determines that the application or petition as supplemented is still
incomplete and provides the written notification of incompleteness, the bill would
require the applicant, within 30 days, to submit additional supplemental materials in
order to complete the application or petition, or to appeal the notification of
incompleteness.

If the project proponent elects to supplement a previously supplemented application or
petition, the deadlines and obligations set forth in this paragraph shall also apply to any
supplemented application or petition.

5) Seeking Further Information

The bill would authorize the water board to, in the course of processing the application,
request the project proponent to clarify, correct, or otherwise supplement the
information required for the application, so long as such information is reasonably
related to, and a logical outgrowth of, the information and materials designated by the
water board as necessary to complete an application for project certification. A request
for further information would not affect the deadlines in this section.

Appealing Water Board Application Determination 

The bill would authorize the project proponent to petition the State Water Board to reconsider 
its own determination of application completeness, or to appeal to the State Water Board any 
regional board’s determination of application completeness. The bill would require the 
appropriate water board to act on the petition for reconsideration or appeal not later than 60 
calendar days after receipt of the appeal in accordance with subdivision (c) of Section 65943 of 
the Government Code. Within 30 days of the timely issuance by the State Water Board of its 
final written determination of completeness, the bill would authorize the project proponent to 
challenge the determination of completeness in court. 



28 

Section 3 

Mitigation Measures for Water Quality Certifications 

Section 3 of SB 23 would define “Watershed Plan” as follows: a document or set of documents, 
developed in consultation with relevant stakeholders, a specific goal of which is aquatic 
resource restoration, establishment, enhancement or preservation within a watershed, which 
addresses aquatic resource conditions in the watershed, addresses multiple stakeholder 
interests and land uses, includes information about identification of priority sites for aquatic 
resource restoration and protection, includes implementation measures to attain aquatic 
resource protection goals for the watershed, and is used by a water board in determining 
appropriate terms and conditions, including avoidance, minimization and compensatory 
mitigation conditions, to be included a project certifications.    

Unless the water board issuing a Section 401 Water Quality Certification determines in writing 
that an approved plan doesn’t substantially meet the definition of a Watershed Plan, the bill 
would require the water board to use the following approved plans as Watershed Plans for 
purposes of implementing the Procedures in issuing project certifications: 

1) Habitat Conservation Plans that include biological goals for aquatic resources;
2) Natural Communities Conservation Plans that include biological goals for aquatic

resources; and,
3) Habitat Management Plans that include biological goals for aquatic resources.

Unless the water board issuing a project certification determines in writing that a plan does not 
substantially meet the definition of a Watershed Plan, the bill would require the water board to 
accept, as terms of the project certification, avoidance, minimization, and compensatory 
mitigation for impacts to waters of the state provided through compliance with any approved 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or Habitat Management 
Plan, so long as the public entity administering the plan identifies, tracks, and publicly reports 
the impacts to waters of the state and the manner in which they are addressed by such 
avoidance, minimization, and compensatory mitigation. 

The bill would prohibit the water board from imposing any project certification terms and 
conditions mandating avoidance, minimization, or compensatory mitigation for impacts to 
waters of the state in addition to those in an approved plan.  

For the water boards to make a determination that an approved Habitat Conservation Plan, 
Natural Communities Conservation Plan, or Habitat Management Plan does not meet the 
definition of a Watershed Plan for purposes of issuing a project certification, the bill would 
require the water board to: 



29 

1) Make that proposed written determination, supported by specific written findings of
insufficiency, available for public review and comment for at least 30 days prior to the
adoption of the determination of insufficiency; and,

2) Provide written responses to public comments received on the determination of
insufficiency prior to making a decision on the determination.

Adopting General Water Quality Certifications 

By January 1, 2025, the bill would require the State Water Board to review and adopt general 
water quality certifications for all general nationwide permits issued by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE) for discharge of dredge and fill material in connection with water supply 
projects and flood risk reduction projects. In adopting general water quality certifications for 
USACE nationwide general Section 404 permits, the State Water Board would be required, to 
the full extent authorized by section 21083.7 of the Public Resources Code, rely upon 
environmental review completed by USACE under the federal National Environmental Policy 
Act for compliance with its duties under the requirements of CEQA.  

Reporting Requirements 

Beginning on January 1, 2025, and annually thereafter, the water boards would be required to 
prepare, provide public notice of, and make available for public review, a report regarding at a 
minimum: 

1) The water supply projects and flood risk reduction projects for which project
certifications have been issued;

2) The water supply projects and flood risk reduction projects for which project
certifications have been issued in reliance upon avoidance, minimization and
compensatory mitigation created and provided through an approved Habitat
Conservation Plan, Natural Communities Conservation Plan, or Habitat Mitigation Plan;

3) Any approved Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Communities Conservation Plan, or
watershed or Habitat Mitigation Plan found by the water board to be insufficient as a
Watershed Management Plan and the reasons for such determination of insufficiency;
and,

4) The general water quality certifications adopted by the State Water Board for general
nationwide permits issued by USACE to authorize discharges of dredge and fill material
in connection with water supply projects and flood risk reduction projects.

Section 4 – Supplemental Consultation 

The bill would authorize a state agency with the authority to authorize a water supply or flood 
risk reduction project to do any of the following: 

1) Enter into an agreement with a project proponent to recover costs for actions
authorized by this section to expedite the review of environmental documents and



 
 

30 
 

review processing and issuances of project certifications, and other authorizations, 
permits, and approvals for water supply projects and flood risk reduction projects with 
the goal of completing permit review and approval in an expeditious manner. 

2) Hire or compensate staff or contract for services needed to achieve these goals. 
3) Work collaboratively with project proponents and other agencies with jurisdiction over 

the water supply project or flood risk reduction project to implement integrated 
regulatory approach in authorizing such projects, similar to efforts implemented by the 
state permitting agencies for projects funded by the San Francisco Bay Area Measure 
AA, the San Francisco Bay Clean Water, Pollution Prevention and Habitat Restoration 
Program. 

 
Staff Comments:  
 
Permitting Authority 
 
In order to build water supply and flood risk reduction infrastructure, local agencies must 
obtain a wide variety of permits from varying state and federal agencies. Actions ranging from 
clearing concrete or dirt, and planting, excavating or removing vegetation, to building access 
roads to channels require the proper permit. Depending on the proposed project activity, the 
following state and federal agencies may have permitting authority over the project activities: 
 

California State Agencies Federal Agencies 
Department of Conservation National Ocean and Atmospheric Administration 

(NOAA) Fisheries 
Department of Fish and Wildlife U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
Department of Water Resources U.S. Forest Service 
Regional Water Quality Control Boards  
State Lands Commission  
State Water Resources Control Board  

 
Lake and Streambed Alteration Program 
 
CDFW requires any person, state or local governmental agency, or public utility to notify them 
prior to beginning any activity that may do one or more of the following: 
 

1) Divert or obstruct the natural flow of any river, stream, or lake; 
2) Change the bed, channel, or bank of any river, stream, or lake; 
3) Use material from any river, stream, or lake; or, 
4) Deposit of dispose of material into any river, stream, or lake. 

 
A LSAA is a type of permit that includes measures necessary to protect existing fish and wildlife 
resources. CDFW requires an LSAA when it determines that an activity, as described in a 
complete LSAA notification, may substantially adversely affect existing fish or wildlife resources. 



31 

If a threated or endangered species is present at the site, a separate California Endangered 
Species Act (CESA) permit may be required. An LSAA doesn’t provide CESA take authorization. 
Further, if a species is protected under the federal Endangered Species Act, the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service should be contacted. 

Procedures for Discharges of Dredged or Fill Material to Waters of the State 

In accordance with the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, the State Water Board and 
the Regional Water Quality Control Boards are authorized to regulate discharges of waste, 
which includes discharges of dredged or fill material, that may affect the quality of waters of 
the state. These procedures ensure that the regulation of dredge or fill activities be done in a 
manner to ensure no overall net loss and long-term net gain in the quantity, quality, and 
permanence of wetlands acreage and values.  

In 2019, the State Water Board adopted a State Wetland Definition and Procedures for 
Discharges of Dredged or Fill Material to Waters of the State. The Procedures include a wetland 
definition, a framework for determining if a wetland feature is a water of the state, wetland 
delineation procedures, and procedures for the submittal, review, and approval of applications 
for Water Quality Certifications and Waste Discharge Requirements for dredge or fill activities. 

401 Water Quality Certification 

The 401 Water Quality Certification and Wetlands Program is responsible for regulating 
discharges of dredged or fill material to waters of the state. If a project may result in a 
discharge of dredged or fill material, as defined in the Procedures, an application must be 
submitted to the State Water Board or Regional Water Quality Control Board. Examples of work 
that can result in discharges includes development of projects that fill in water, dredging to 
maintain channel capacity, navigational dredging, flood control channelization, levee 
construction, channel clearing, and fill of wetlands for development of bridges, piers, docks, etc. 

If a project is located fully within a Regional Water Quality Control Board boundary, the 
application should be submitted to that Regional Water Quality Control Board office. If the 
project involves a Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) license, an appropriation of 
water, or a diversion of water for domestic, irrigation, power, municipal, industrial or other 
beneficial use, the application must be sent to the State Water Board Division of Water Rights’ 
401 Certification Program. If a project crosses Regional Water Quality Control Board boundaries 
and does not involve a water right or FERC license, the application should be submitted to the 
State Water Board Division of Water Quality’s 401 Certification Program. Finally, if the project 
qualifies for coverage under the State Water Board’s General Order for Nationwide Permits 12, 
57, or 58, a notice of intent and fee should be submitted to the State Water Board.  

Even though a discharger may have obtained a federal permit or license that authorizes impacts 
to waters of the U.S. (waters that are within federal jurisdiction), the discharger must also 
obtain certification from the State Water Board or the Regional Water Quality Control Board to 



 
 

32 
 

ensure that the discharge does not violate state water quality standards or any other 
appropriate requirement of state law. 
 
Habitat Conservation Plans 
 
Habitat Conservation Plans are planning documents that authorize the limited and 
unintentional take of listed species when it occurs incidental to otherwise lawful activities. 
These plans describe an assessment of impacts that will likely result from the proposed taking 
of one or more federally listed species, measures that the permit applicant will undertake to 
monitor, minimize, and mitigate for such impacts, identify any alternatives that could avoid the 
incidental take and the reasons why those alternatives are not being chosen, how the 
conservation measures will be funded, and any additional measures that the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service may require. After a permit applicant receives an incidental take permit, they 
may move forward with their project without concern they will be in violation of the federal 
Endangered Species Act.  
 
Natural Community Conservation Planning (NCCP) 
The NCCP program run by CDFW, represents a cooperative effort to protect habitats and 
species while also providing for appropriate economic activity. The NCCP program differs from 
the California Endangered Species Act and the federal Endangered Species Act in the sense that 
it takes a broad-based ecosystem approach to planning for the protection and perpetuation of 
biological diversity, as opposed to identifying and protecting individual species that have 
already declined in number significantly. CDFW and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service provide 
support, direction and guidance to those involved in an NCCP, while local agencies oversee its 
development. Seventeen NCCPs have been approved so far and more than nine are in various 
stages of planning.  
 
How Would SB 23 Streamline the Regulatory Permitting Process 
 
While the need for water supply and flood protection infrastructure is evident, getting these 
critical, timely projects approved and built can be a significant challenge. Even after the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) process is complete, the permitting process can be 
mired in delays caused by overlapping jurisdictions of state and federal agencies, confusion 
over what’s required for a completed application, and state agency and project applicant 
staffing issues.  As delays occur, costs increase, and depending on the size of the project, delays 
can ultimately cost water rate payers and taxpayers tens of millions of dollars. This regulatory 
gridlock can also lead to worse environmental outcomes and delay projects that will benefit the 
environment. 
   
The state must identify opportunities to improve and streamline the regulatory permitting 
process so these critical infrastructure projects are built at the pace and scale needed to 
prepare for climate change.  
 



 
 

33 
 

SB 23 would help address these inefficiencies by creating an expedited process whereby state 
agencies and project applicants collaborate to expedite and advance projects needed to protect 
communities and bolster water supplies while preserving established environmental review 
processes that play a critical role in protecting and enhancing the environment.  
 
Specifically, SB 23 would streamline the regulatory permitting of water supply and flood risk 
reduction projects in four ways: 
 

1) Reform the process by which an application for a Section 401 Water Quality Certification 
is deemed complete; 

2) Require the review and approval of Section 401 Water Quality Certifications and Lake 
and Streambed Alteration Agreements to be completed within 180 days of submittal of 
a complete permit application; 

3) Avoid duplicative planning efforts by allowing certain watershed management plans 
that are already developed and implemented to be used for mitigation required through 
Section 401 Water Quality Certifications; and 

4) Allow project applicants to voluntarily contribute resources to state permitting agencies 
in order to provide agencies with additional resources to help agencies meet the 
permitting deadlines established in the bill.  

 
Section 3 – Explaining the Importance of Watershed Plans 
 
Under Section 404(b)(1) Guidelines found in federal regulations, a discharge of dredged or fill 
materials into a water of the United States may not be permitted if there is a practicable 
alternative to the proposed project that would be less environmentally damaging to the aquatic 
environment. Under California’s Procedures for Discharge of Dredged or Fill Material, an 
applicant is required to submit an alternative analysis that is more rigorous, and more specific 
in nature, than the analysis required by the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) 
under Section 404. The Procedures contain very limited exemptions to the alternative analysis. 
However, an exemption is provided to projects carried out in accordance with a “Watershed 
Plan” that has been approved for use by the water board and analyzed in an environmental 
document (i.e., CEQA or NEPA document) that includes an alternative analysis, monitoring 
provisions, and guidance on compensatory mitigation opportunities. The definition of a 
Watershed Plan ensures that most HCPs and NCCPs can qualify for the alternative analysis 
exemption, as well as the Procedures’ mitigation standards for Watershed Plans. 
 
Unfortunately, the water boards have not followed through with approval to use such plans for 
mitigation as required by their own regulations. SB 23 would codify this portion of the 
regulations and require the water board to use such watershed management plans under the 
Procedures unless the water board determines that the approved HCP, NCCP, or other habitat 
management plans does not substantially meet the definition of a Watershed Plan for aquatic 
resources. This would create more flexibility in the Water Quality Certification process and 
avoid duplicative planning efforts, thereby expediting water supply and flood risk reduction 
projects to better address climate change impacts while still protecting the environment. 



 
 

34 
 

 
Section 3 – General Orders 
 
General orders are designed to regulate activities that are similar in nature and have minimal 
impacts to aquatic resources. General orders serve to streamline application procedures for the 
applicant and to reduce staff workload for the water boards. For dredge or fill projects, the 
water boards have issued certifications for a number of Corps general permits.  
 
In order to utilize this existing permit streamlining process, SB 23 would require the State Water 
Board, by January 1, 2025, to review and adopt water quality certifications for all general 
nationwide permits issued by the Corps under Section 404 for discharge of dredge or fill 
material in connection with water supply projects and flood risk reduction projects. 
Additionally, in adopting these general water quality certifications, SB 23 would require the 
State Water Board, to the extent authorized by CEQA, to rely upon NEPA documentation for the 
projects to comply with CEQA.  
 
In the event a project requires both an EIR prepared pursuant to CEQA and an environmental 
impact statement (EIS) prepared pursuant to NEPA, existing law authorizes the lead agency to 
use the EIS as the EIR. This is a permit streamlining tool established in existing that allows a 
project proponent and lead agency to utilize existing environmental documentation and avoid 
duplicative planning efforts. Requiring the State Water Board to use existing NEPA 
documentation in issuing general orders to water supply and flood risk reduction projects will 
further expedite the permitting process. 
 
Newsom Administration Efforts to Streamline Permitting 
 
Water Resilience Portfolio 
 
The Water Resilience Portfolio, released in July 2020, describes a set of actions to meet 
California’s water needs throughout the 21st century. Within the portfolio, the Newsom 
Administration identified a handful of action items pertaining to environmental review 
processes and permit streamlining. Below is a description of some of those action items and 
their progress, identified in the 2021 California Water Resilience Portfolio Progress Report: 
 
Action item 13.6 in the Portfolio directed CDFW to pilot a project to evaluate the effectiveness 
of simplified environmental permitting processes and monitor whether such processes 
are achieving desired environmental outcomes. The progress report indicates they are in Phase 
Two, meaning the administration is securing funding, logistics, support materials, and is in the 
process of groundbreaking and beginning project work. Through this one-year pilot, CDFW 
made significant progress in streamlining its own permitting processes within the regulatory 
framework of both CESA and the Fish and Game Code. This effort resulted in a new template 
for consolidating and streamlining the process for CESA and LSAA permits, called the 
Restoration Management Permit template. This template consolidates two or more different 



35 

“take” authorizations that a restoration project may need into a single streamlined permit. This 
template was piloted in five restoration projects.  

Action item 25.2 directs DWR and the Flood Board to review state, federal, and local permitting 
processes for flood risk reduction projects and operations and maintenance and recommend 
ways to improve permitting processes. According to the progress report, this action item is 
currently in Phase Two, and that DWR and Flood Board staff continue working to 
identify the regulations and permits on which to focus improvement efforts and the regulatory 
agencies that should be included in these efforts. 

Governor’s Water Supply Strategy 

In August 2022, Governor Newsom unveiled a set of actions for increasing and diversifying 
California's water supply. The "Water Supply Strategy: Adapting to a Hotter, Drier Future" calls 
for a modernization of the state’s water system through major investments in infrastructure to 
create new sources of water supply. The plan also sets specific goals for increasing the amount 
of water that is stored above and below ground, recycled and reused, and making new water 
available for use by capturing stormwater and desalinating ocean water and salty water in 
groundwater basins.  

The “Water Supply Strategy” identifies permitting delay as a problem that must be addressed 
and calls on the Legislature to streamline processes so projects can be planned, permitted, and 
built more quickly, while still protecting the environment.  

SB 23 answers this call to action by proposing specific ideas for how California can streamline 
the regulatory permitting process for water supply and flood risk reduction projects without 
compromising environmental protection. This bill would set deadlines for processing 
applications for a multitude of projects, reduce duplicative planning efforts, and provide 
permitting agencies with additional resources to meet the requirements of this bill. The 
comprehensive approach proposed in SB 23 would modernize the regulatory permitting 
process to timely deliver the projects necessary to meet this unprecedented climate challenge. 

Recommended Position: Sponsor 

At the October Planning Meeting, the State Legislative Committee voted to sponsor a permit 
streamlining proposal submitted by Valley Water. Senator Anna Caballero agreed to author this 
proposal. On December 5, 2022, Senator Caballero introduced SB 23, which is currently a spot 
bill and will be the vehicle for ACWA’s permit streamlining proposal. The bill will be amended 
with substantive language in the coming weeks. 

A working group of ACWA members spent weeks working on the language provided by Valley 
Water to address comments from SLC members at the Planning Meeting. Of note, the bill now 
specifies that the Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement provisions in Section 1 would only 
apply to projects already required to obtain an LSAA from CDFW. Additionally, the work group 



 
 

36 
 

amended Section 2 to provide that the proposed Water Quality Certification process is an 
optional process for the project proponent to utilize.  
 
SB 23 presents an opportunity to seize growing momentum for legislation that would 
streamline the permitting process for water supply and flood risk reduction projects. The Water 
Resilience Portfolio prioritized the need to accelerate permitting for new water storage 
projects. The Governor’s Water Supply Strategy highlighted the urgency for California to 
increase and modernize its water supply and expedite projects in order to adapt to more 
extreme weather patterns caused by climate change. Governor Newsom, during his January 10 
budget release press conference, again emphasized the need for California to address issues 
creating regulatory roadblocks that delay critical infrastructure projects, stating: 
 

The time to getting these projects done is critical. The process we’ve created is 
creating paralysis and creating problems as a consequence. And we have a 
responsibility to fix that. Progress was made last year. I assure you more progress 
will be made in the ensuing years. 

 
SB 23 answers this call to action by proposing specific ideas for how California can streamline 
the regulatory permitting process for water supply and flood risk reduction projects without 
compromising environmental protection. From 2020 to 2022, California experienced the driest 
three-year period on record. In 2023, this prolonged drought was met with a series of 
atmospheric rivers and a bomb cyclone that brought significant amounts of rain and snow, 
leading to widespread flooding, property damage, and tens of thousands forced to evacuate 
their homes. This weather whiplash will only become more pronounced in the years to come. 
SB 23 would help ensure ACWA members can modernize their infrastructure at the pace and 
scale necessary to meet this challenge. 
 
Support:                                                                                       Opposition: N/A 
Association of California Water Agencies  



Item Number: 04 
Attachment 03 

Legislative Positions 

Support— Measure has substantial significance; District actively supports the proposed 
legislation. 

Support and Seek Amendments— Measure has substantial significance; District will  
actively support the proposed legislation while continuing to seek specific amendments. 

Support if Amended— Measure has substantial significance; District will actively  
support the proposed legislation if it is amended to address specific shortcomings identified 
by the District. 

Favor— Legislation is generally beneficial to District; it will join other organizations 
in support but will not engage actively in advocacy for the measure. 

Favor if Amended— Legislation is generally beneficial to District; it will join with other 
organizations in support if legislation is amended to address specific shortcomings identified 
by the District but will not engage actively in advocacy for the measure. 

Watch— Measures or general issues of potential significance to District but have not 
been sufficiently defined for a formal position. 

Not Favor— Legislation is generally detrimental to District; it will join with other 
organizations in opposition but will not engage actively in advocacy against the measure. 

Oppose Unless Amended— Measure has substantial significance; District will actively 
oppose the proposed legislation unless amended to address specific shortcomings. 

Oppose— Measure has substantial significance; District actively opposes the proposed 
legislation. 



Item Number: 05 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 l 2 

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Update Board Reserve and ADA Grievance Policies 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve updates to the Board Reserve and ADA Grievance policies 

SUMMARY 
The District has a number of Board adopted policies, some of which have become outdated.  
Specifically, staff is seeking updates to the Board Reserve Policy to identify the Water Supply 
Reserve Fund and the ADA Grievance Policy to bring it current with legal requirements, 
including identifying the District’s ADA Coordinator(s). 

DISCUSSION 
Board Policy No. 46 is the Board Reserve Policy last updated in December of 2013.  Recent draw 
down of reserves during the recent Water Shortage Emergency and the following months since, 
have demonstrated the wisdom in maintaining a sound reserve policy, which makes reserves 
available in the event of unforeseen events or emergencies.  As part of the District’s recent 
work in developing a cost of service analysis as part of the District’s current rate setting process, 
the Board requested that an additional reserve fund be established to best position the District 
to implement new water supply projects as further research helps to crystalize key District 
projects for future development.  The proposed updates to the Board’s Reserve Policy would 
include the new water supply reserve fund and make language changes to further clarify the 
funding and maintenance of the District’s existing reserves.  A more comprehensive review and 
update of the Board Reserve Policy is planned for later this year. 

Federal law requires a public entity that employs fifty (50) or more persons to designate at least 
one employee to coordinate its efforts to comply with and carry out its responsibilities under 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which is applicable to the District.  The 
name, office address and telephone number of the employee(s) designated are required to be 
made publicly available, and the District is also required to adopt and publish grievance 
procedures for resolving complaints alleging violations under the ADA.  This requirement helps 
ensure that an individual with disabilities knows who to contact regarding potential 
accommodations and modifications to the District’s services, activities and programs, as well as 
provides a process for resolving potential issues.  The District has complied with these 
requirements with the Board’s adoption of Board Policy No. 31, last updated in May of 1994, 
which identifies a staff member as the District’s ADA Coordinator, includes all required contact 
information, and sets forth a grievance process for resolution of ADA complaints.  The proposed 
updates to this policy would include revising the designated employee(s), as the current 
designee has left District employment, and providing current contact information for the newly 



Item Number: 05 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

P a g e 2 | 2 

designated employee(s).  The contact information of the designated employee(s) would also be 
made publically available on the District website and through other means to ensure members 
of the public know who to contact regarding these issues.      

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no anticipated financial impact associated with these actions. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
1. Redline of Board Policy No. 46, showing proposed changes
2. Proposed updated Board Policy No. 46 – Reserve
3. Proposed updated Board Policy No. 31 – ADA Grievance Process

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

General Counsel’s Office 
  

Molly MacLean 
General Counsel 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 



MARIN MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD POLICY 
NO.: 46 
DATE: 12/17/13 
LAST REVISED:  04/04/23 

SUBJECT: RESERVE POLICY 

Introduction 

The purpose of this document is to establish a consistent policy for establishing the 
minimum reserve levels to be maintained by the District. 

Scope 

It is intended that this policy cover all reserve funds currently or to be established and 
held by the District. This policy shall not pertain to reserves held for the benefit of 
the District by others or reserves established as the result of the borrowing money or 
the issuance of debt by the District. 

General 

The Board recognizes the need and benefit of maintaining reserves for various 
purposes. It is the goal of this policy to establish those reserve funds and the minimum 
amount to be maintained by each. 

Policy 

The Board of Directors of the Marin Municipal Water District shall review the level of 
reserves held in each fund annually and at the time of adopting the two-year 
preliminary or proposed operating and/or capital budget. Only those reserve funds held by 
the District are subject to this policy. 

The Board authorizes and directs that the following reserve funds be established and 
further directs that the minimum amount of each reserve fund shall be, or shall 
be calculated to be, as follows: 

1) Insurance Reserve Fund: This fund is established to pay exceptionally large self- 
insured claims. The fund shall maintain a minimum balance equivalent to six
times the District’s self-insured retention.

2) Workers Compensation Reserve Fund: This fund is established to accumulate
reserves sufficient to pay current and future workers compensation claims and
operating expenses. The minimum balance shall be that set by the actuary. An
actuarial study shall be conducted as required by state law but no less frequently
than bi-annually.

Formatted: Highlight

Item Number: 05
   Attachment: 01



BOARD POLICY NO. 46 
11/21/1304/04/23 
Page 2 

 
  

3) Capital Reserve Fund: This fund is established to accumulate reserves that may 
be used for current and future capital construction and equipment purchases. 
The fund shall accumulate funds from annual transfers from operating revenues, 
funds received from one time “windfall” revenues and revenues from the sale of 
capital assets. The minimum balance shall be equivalent to the annual budget 
for capital expenditures. 

 
4) Unrestricted/Undesignated Reserve Fund: This fund is established to 

accumulate reserves which may be used for any purpose of the District. A 
minimum balance equivalent to six months of the annual operating budget shall 
be maintained. At the time this reserve fund is reviewed, the Board shall adopt 
a level of reserve desired ten years from the date of review. This level shall 
then be used in the rate model when setting rates, fees, and charges. 

 
5) Rate Stabilization Fund: This fund is established to accumulate reserves which 

may be used for transfer to gross revenues to be used in the calculation of the 
District’s debt coverage ratio or for any other lawful purpose of the District. The 
Rate Stabilization Fund is increased by deposits of gross revenues made 180 
days following the end of a fiscal year by Board approval. 

 
 
5)6) Water Supply Project Fund: This fund is established to accumulate reserves 

to support water supply enhancement and resiliency projects. Beginning FY 
2023-24, $2.5 million will be transferred to the Water Supply Project Fund 
annually. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt



MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD POLICY 
NO.: 46 
DATE: 12/17/13 
LAST REVISED:  04/04/23

SUBJECT:  RESERVES 

Introduction 

The purpose of this document is to establish a consistent policy for establishing the 
minimum reserve levels to be maintained by the District. 

Scope 

It is intended that this policy cover all reserve funds currently or to be established and 
held by the District. This policy shall not pertain to reserves held for the benefit of 
the District by others or reserves established as the result of the borrowing money or 
the issuance of debt by the District. 

General 

The Board recognizes the need and benefit of maintaining reserves for various 
purposes. It is the goal of this policy to establish those reserve funds and the minimum 
amount to be maintained by each. 

Policy 

The Board of Directors of the Marin Municipal Water District shall review the level of 
reserves held in each fund annually and at the time of adopting the two-year 
preliminary or proposed operating and/or capital budget. Only those reserve funds held by 
the District are subject to this policy. 

The Board authorizes and directs that the following reserve funds be established and 
further directs that the minimum amount of each reserve fund shall be, or shall 
be calculated to be, as follows: 

1) Insurance Reserve Fund: This fund is established to pay exceptionally large self- 
insured claims. The fund shall maintain a minimum balance equivalent to six
times the District’s self-insured retention.



BOARD POLICY NO. 46 
04/04/23 
Page 2 

2) Workers Compensation Reserve Fund: This fund is established to accumulate
reserves sufficient to pay current and future workers compensation claims and
operating expenses. The minimum balance shall be that set by the actuary. An
actuarial study shall be conducted as required by state law but no less frequently
than bi-annually.

3) Capital Reserve Fund: This fund is established to accumulate reserves that may
be used for current and future capital construction and equipment purchases.
The fund shall accumulate funds from annual transfers from operating revenues,
funds received from one time “windfall” revenues and revenues from the sale of
capital assets. The minimum balance shall be equivalent to the annual budget
for capital expenditures.

4) Unrestricted/Undesignated Reserve Fund: This fund is established to
accumulate reserves which may be used for any purpose of the District. A
minimum balance equivalent to six months of the annual operating budget shall
be maintained. At the time this reserve fund is reviewed, the Board shall adopt
a level of reserve desired ten years from the date of review. This level shall
then be used in the rate model when setting rates, fees, and charges.

5) Rate Stabilization Fund: This fund is established to accumulate reserves which
may be used for transfer to gross revenues to be used in the calculation of the
District’s debt coverage ratio or for any other lawful purpose of the District. The
Rate Stabilization Fund is increased by deposits of gross revenues made 180
days following the end of a fiscal year by Board approval.

6) Water Supply Project Fund: This fund is established to accumulate reserves to
support water supply enhancement and resiliency projects. Beginning FY
2023-24, $2.5 million will be transferred to the Water Supply Project Fund
annually.



Board Policy 
No.: 31 

Date: 07-22-1992 
Last Revised: 04-04-2023 

1 | P a g e

Grievance Procedures for Resolution of Complaints under 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Purpose 
The Marin Municipal Water District (the “District”) has adopted an internal grievance procedure 
providing for prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by 
the U.S. Department of Justice regulations implementing Title II of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (herein referenced as ADA or Title II).  Title II states, in part, that “…no qualified 
individual with a disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from participation in 
or be denied the benefits of services, programs, or activities of a public entity, or be subjected 
to discrimination by any such entity.”  This policy will establish clear procedures for the prompt 
and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any violation of Title II of the ADA.  

Scope 
This policy shall be applicable to all complaints alleging violations of Title II of the ADA. 

Procedure for Resolution of Complaints 

Any individual with a disability who feels discriminated against under Title II has the right to file 
a complaint with the District.  Complaints should be addressed to the applicable ADA 
Coordinator(s). 

1. A complaint shall be filed in writing using the District’s Complaint Form Regarding Title II
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which is attached hereto and may be requested
from the applicable ADA Coordinator(s).

2. A complaint should be filed within ten (10) calendar days after the complainant
becomes aware of the alleged violation.



2 | P a g e  
 

3. An investigation, if deemed appropriate by the applicable District ADA Coordinator(s), 
shall follow the filing of a complaint.  The investigation shall be conducted by the ADA 
Coordinator(s) or designee.  As a part of an investigation, all interested persons and 
their representatives, if any, shall be given an opportunity to submit evidence relevant 
to the complaint.  

 
4. A written determination as to the validity of the complaint and a description of the 

resolution, if any, shall be issued by the applicable District ADA Coordinator(s) or 
designee and a copy forwarded to the complainant.  

 
5. A complainant may request a reconsideration of the written determination issued by 

the District ADA Coordinator(s) or designee in instances where there is dissatisfaction 
with the determination.  The request for reconsideration should be made in writing to 
the District’s General Manager or designee within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of 
the written determination.  The General Manager or designee will review the request.  
The decision of the General Manager or designee shall be final.  

 
6. The applicable ADA Coordinator(s) or designee shall maintain the files and records of 

the District relating to complaints filed in their respective areas.  
 

7. The right of the person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint filed shall 
not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of an ADA 
complaint with the responsible federal and state departments or agencies.  Use of this 
grievance procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 

 
8. These rules shall be construed to protect the rights of the individual with disabilities and 

to assure that the District complies with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, 
including Title II.  This procedure is not applicable to complaints emanating from Title I 
of the ADA applicable to District employees and pertaining to equal employment 
opportunity for individuals with disabilities.  Employees shall direct all complaints under 
Title I of the ADA to the District’s Human Resources Department. 

 
 
ADA Coordinator(s)  
 
The District General Manager shall identify and regularly update the name(s) of District 
personnel who will be identified as the District’s ADA Coordinator(s).  The name(s), phone 



3 | P a g e  
 

number(s) and email address(es) of the identified ADA Coordinator(s) will be included on the 
District’s website and other outreach materials.   
 
Complainants may contact the respective ADA coordinator(s) by phone, email or by mailing the 
attached “Form for Resolution of Complaints under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act” addressed to: ADA Coordinator, 220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera, CA 94925. 

 
Attachment: 

1. Form for Resolution of Complaints under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal Authorities: 42 U.S.C.A. Section 12132; 28 C.F.R. Section 35.107  

  



4 | P a g e  
 

 
Form for Resolution of Complaints under  

Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

NAME: ____________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _____________________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE: ____________________________________ 

EMAIL: ____________________________________ 

DATE OF OCCURRANCE: ____________________________________ 

DESCRIPTION OF COMPLAINT (Attach additional pages if needed): 

 

 

REMEDY SOUGHT: 

 

 

SIGNED: _____________________________       DATED: ____________________________ 

 
 

PLEASE MAIL A COPY OF THE COMPLETED FORM TO: 

 (Postions to be identified and updated as needed by the District General Manager) 
Attention: ADA Coordinator, 220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera, CA 94925. 

 

 



Item Number: 06 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 |2 

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Approve a Resolution Granting Settlement Authority to the District General Manager and Risk 
Management Committee for Certain Claims and Pending Litigation 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve a resolution Granting the District General Manager authority to settle liability claims, 
worker’s compensation claims and pending litigation in an amount up to $30,000, with lesser 
authority for liability claims to the Risk Management Committee in an amount up to $5,000 

SUMMARY 
Staff is proposing that the Board update the General Manager’s authority to settle liability 
claims, workers’ compensation claims and pending litigation in an amount up to $30,000, with 
liability claims of $5,000 or less going to the Risk Management Committee for settlement.  The 
General Counsel’s Office would continue to evaluate all such claims and make 
recommendations for possible settlement to the General Manager and Risk Management 
Committee, as appropriate.   Any claims or pending litigation in amounts exceeding these limits 
would continue to be brought before the Board. 

DISCUSSION 
The District General Manager currently has authority to approve the settlement of liability 
claims in an amount up to $20,000, with smaller claims of up to $2,500 being evaluated by a 
Risk Management Committee comprised of executive staff, in consultation with the General 
Manager.  This authority does not presently expressly apply to pending litigation matters.  
Worker’s compensation matters with a final fixed settlement amount of up to $20,000 are also 
within the delegated authority of the General Manager.  It is common practice for a public 
agency to delegate some authority to the chief executive officer to settle smaller liability claims.  
The practice helps move these smaller matters through the organization in an expeditious 
manner, saving staff time and agency resources.  It also ensures that impacted claimants, who 
are generally customers of the District, receive timely compensation for undisputed damages. 

Updating the District General Manager’s authority to settle liability claims, workers 
compensation claims and pending litigation will help to streamline the settlement of smaller 
claims and cases, increasing organizational efficiency and potentially avoiding litigation costs 
and outside attorney’s fees.  Further, these settlement limits have been in place for several 
years, since 2003 for settlement of claims and 2005 for worker’s compensation claims, and 
have not been updated for inflation.  Staff is proposing that the Board consider updating the 
General Manager’s authority to settle liability claims, workers’ compensation claims and 
pending litigation in an amount up to $30,000, with liability claims of $5,000 or less going to the 
Risk Management Committee for settlement.  Further, the proposed resolution would clarify 



Item Number: 06 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

P age 2  l  2 

the management positions within the District who will comprise the Risk Management 
Committee, as the position titles have transitioned in past years due to internal restructuring.  
The resolution proposes that the Risk Management Committee be comprised of three members 
of the District’s Senior Leadership Team, to include the Chief Financial Officer and two other 
members as appointed by the General Manager from time to time.  This will assure that even 
with future changes to position titles, the policy will be current and will allow the General 
Manager to rotate the assignment as necessary.  The General Counsel’s Office will continue to 
evaluate all such claims and make recommendations for possible settlement to the General 
Manager and Risk Management Committee, as appropriate.   Any claims or pending litigation in 
amounts exceeding these limits would continue to be brought before the Board. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Due to the variability of claims, it is difficult to predict actual amounts that may be incurred by 
the District.  There is funding included in the current budget, however, to address these types 
of liability claims and pending litigation, and it is expected that this funding will be carried 
forward in future budget years, as is the practice of the District.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
1. Proposed Resolution Granting Settlement Authority to the District General Manager and

Risk Management Committee for Certain Claims and Pending Litigation

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

General Counsel’s Office 
  

Molly MacLean 
General Counsel 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 



Item Number: 06 
Attachment: 01 

Resolution Page | 1 

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
GRANTING SETTLEMENT AUTHORITY TO THE DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER AND 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE FOR CERTAIN CLAIMS AND PENDING LITIGATION 

WHEREAS, the District has an established a program to manage the receipt, 
evaluation and disposition of claims for liability filed under the Government Claims 
Act, California Government Code section 810, et seq., which includes referral of most 
claims to third party claims administrator and review internally by the General 
Counsel’s Office; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to prior Board approval on November 5, 2003, authority 
to settle such claims was granted to the District General Manager up to $20,000 and 
the District’s Risk Management Committee up to $2,500, and it is the interest of the 
District to re-authorize and increase the settlement authority amounts to keep pace 
with general increases in costs and to maintain operational efficiencies; and  

WHEREAS, it is also in the interest of the District to clarify that the General 
Manager’s settlement authority should extend to litigation matters pending against 
the District; and 

WHEREAS, over the years the composition of the Risk Management 
Committee has changed as District position titles have transitioned due to internal 
restructuring, and therefore clarification of the composition of the Risk Management 
Committee is necessary; and  

WHEREAS; the District also operates a Worker’s Compensation program with 
the assistance of a third party administrator, and pursuant to Board approval on 
December 14, 2005, the General Manager was granted settlement authority up to 
$20,000, for both adjudicated and non-adjudicated claims, it is also in the interest of 
the District to update and increase this authority to maintain operational 
efficiencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HEREBY RESOLVES that: 

1. The General Manager is hereby granted the authority to settle liability
claims filed against the District, litigation actions filed against the District,
and workers’ compensation claims, whether adjudicated or non-
adjudicated, up to the amount of $30,000, in consultation with the
District’s General Counsel’s Office and its legal evaluation of any such



Resolution  Page | 2  
 

claims or pending litigation matters; and 
 

2. The Risk Management Committee, which is an internal staff committee 
operated by the District to review minor liability claims, shall be 
comprised of not less than three members of the District’s Senior 
Leadership Team, including the Chief Financial Officer and two other 
members as appointed from time to time by the District General 
Manager,  

 
3. The Risk Management Committee is hereby granted the authority to 

settle liability claims filed against the District in an amount up to $5,000, 
in consultation with the District’s General Counsel’s Office and its legal 
evaluation of any such claims. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of April 2023 by the following vote of the 

Board. 
 
AYES:    
 
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
 

_______________________________ 
Monty Schmitt 
President, Board of Directors 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Terrie Gillen 
Board Secretary 



Item Number: 07 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 | 1 

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Sprint Spectrum Realty Company, LLC Lease No. 61 Assignment to VB Run, LLC 

RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize General Manager to Execute a Consent to Assignment of Lease No. 61 with Sprint 
Spectrum Realty Company, LLC to VB Run, LLC. 

SUMMARY 
Pursuant to Lease 61, the District leases a portion of its Lucas Valley Tank Site located off Lucas 
Valley Road in San Rafael to Sprint Spectrum Realty Company LLC (tenant) for the operation of a 
communications facility. The current lease terms extends into 2027. In April of 2021, the District 
was notified by the tenant of their intent to enter into an agreement with Vertical Bridge NTCF, 
LLC and certain of its affiliates to manage, operate and ultimately purchase the facility.  In order 
to initiate the transaction, the tenant has requested the District agree to consent to the 
assignment of lease 61 to VB Run, LLC, an affiliate of Vertical Bridge NTCF, LLC.  

Pursuant to Section 15 of Lease 61, the District’s written consent is required prior to Sprint 
Spectrum Realty Company, LLC assigning the lease agreement to VB Run, LLC, which consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld. District staff reviewed the request for assignment of Lease 
61, information regarding VB Run, LLC and their holding company Vertical Bridge REIT, LLC 
including a financial report and have determined that VB Run, LLC appears capable of 
performing the terms of Lease 61.  This assignment will not change any of the lease terms. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 None 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
1. Request for Consent to Assignment
2. Draft Consent to Assignment

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Engineering 
  

Crystal Yezman 
Engineering Division Manager 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 



Item Number: 07
   Attachment: 01























1 

VB Site ID: US-CA-5234 
T-Mobile Site ID:FS04XC242

CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT 
COMMUNICATIONS LEASE NO. 61 

LUCAS VALLEY TANK SITE 
APN 165-010-03 

THIS CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT (“Consent”), is made and given as of _____________ 
(the “Effective Date”), by the MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (“District”), to 
SPRINT SPECTRUM REALTY COMPANY, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the 
“Assignor”), and VB RUN, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Assignee”) 
(referred to herein as “Party” or collectively as “Parties) and subsidiary of VERTICAL BRIDGE 
REIT, LLC. 

For good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree 
as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals: This Consent is made with regard to the following facts: 

1.1 District and Sprint Spectrum, L.P., as the predecessor in interest to Assignor, entered into 
that certain Communications Lease Agreement dated June 4, 2014, which commenced on 
March 23, 2012 for three (3) five-year terms ending March 22, 2027, and as amended 
January 13, 2020 by the First Amendment (Communications Lease No. 61) (collectively 
referred to herein as the “Lease”), attached hereto and incorporated by reference as 
Attachment A, for the purpose of constructing and operating a communications facility at 
the Lucas Valley Tank Site located at or near 999 Old Lucas Valley Road in San Rafael 
(“Premises”). 

1.2 The Assignor now desires to assign all its right and interests in and under the Lease to 
Assignee and Assignee desires to assume all of the rights, interests and obligations under 
the Lease first accruing from and after the effective date of the Assignment, including but 
not limited to compliance with all Lease terms and payment of rent for the express benefit 
of the District and pursuant to Section 15 of the Lease, Assignor and has requested the 
prior written consent of the District to said assignment (hereinafter the “Assignment”). 

1.3 District staff have determined, after reviewing certain documentation from Assignee that 
Assignee has the necessary skills, expertise, and financial fitness to perform under the terms 
of the Lease according to the existing terms and conditions set forth therein and the District 
has therefor agreed to consent to the assignment upon the terms and conditions set forth 
herein. 

Section 2. Consent of MMWD: The District acknowledges and agrees that Assignor is not in 
default of any of its obligations under or in breach of the Lease as of  the Effective Date.  The 
District hereby consents to the Assignment, provided that Assignee agrees as part of the 
assignment agreement between Assignor and Assignee, to assume all of the obligations under 

Item Number: 07
   Attachment: 02



2     

the Lease for the express benefit of the District and to further comply with the terms and 
conditions of the Lease, in the form attached hereto as Attachment A.  Assignee shall provide a 
fully executed copy of the Lease Assignment between Assignor and Assignee within five (5) 
business days from the effective date of the assignment, as well as contact and address 
information for Assignee.  District further consents to Assignee subleasing Assignor’s existing 
Premises to Assignor. 
 
Section 3. Use: Pursuant to Section 2 of the Lease, Assignee shall promptly ensure that all 
necessary certificates, permits, licenses, and other approvals, including environmental 
clearances, which may be required from any governmental authorities or third parties are up to 
date, in compliance with all applicable ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations, and duly 
authorize Assignee to operate and maintain the communications facility on the Premises, and 
provide written confirmation of same in a form satisfactory to District within 90 days of the 
effective date of the Assignment.  
 
Section 4. Representations and Warranties: Each Party hereby represents and warrants to the 
other Parties that: 
 
It has the full right, corporate power and authority to enter into this Consent and to perform its 
obligations hereunder. 
The execution of this Consent by the individual whose signature is set forth at the end of this 
Consent on behalf of such Party, and the delivery of this Consent by such Party, have been duly 
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of such Party. 
 
This Consent has been executed and delivered by such Party and (assuming due authorization, 
execution and delivery by the other Party hereto) constitutes the legal, valid and binding 
obligation of such Party, enforceable against such Party in accordance with its terms. 
 
Section 5. Miscellaneous: This Consent is governed by, and construed in accordance with, the 
laws of the State of California, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions of such State. 
The Parties agree that this Consent is the product of negotiation and preparation by and between 
the Parties and their respective attorneys. Neither this Consent nor any provision thereof shall be 
deemed prepared or drafted by one party or another, or its attorneys, and shall not be construed 
more strongly against any party. 
 
This Consent shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the Parties and each of 
their respective successors and assigns. 
 
The headings in this Consent are for reference only and do not affect the interpretation of this 
Consent. 
 
This Consent may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an original, but all of 
which constitutes one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this 
Consent electronically or by facsimile shall be effective as delivery of an original executed 
counterpart of this Consent. 
 



3     

The Lease and this Consent together constitute the sole and entire agreement of the Parties with 
respect to the District’s consent to the assignment of the Lease to Assignee, and to the 
assumption by Assignee of any and all rights, liabilities and obligations of Assignor under the 
Lease, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements, 
representations and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject matter. If any 
provision or any part of any provision of this Consent is for any reason held to be invalid, 
unenforceable, or contrary to any public policy, law, statute, and/or ordinance, then the 
remainder of this Consent shall not be affected thereby and shall remain valid and fully 
enforceable. 
 
Each Party shall pay its own costs and expenses in connection with this Consent (including the 
fees and expenses of its advisors, accountants and legal counsel). 
 
 
 
MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
Bennett Horenstein, General Manager 
 
 
SPRINT SPECTRUM REALTY COMPANY, LLC 
 
 
 

 
Name: 
Title: 
 
 
VB RUN, LLC 
 
 
 

Name: 
Title: 
 
Attachments:  Attachment A – copy of the Lease and the First Amendment 











































Item Number: 08 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 | 1 

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Approval to Fill Summer Helper and Watershed Aide Positions 

RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the General Manager to recruit and fill 2 Summer Helper and 14 Watershed Aide 
positions  

SUMMARY 
During the summer months, the District typically hires Watershed Aides and Summer Helpers 
and to support critical needs throughout the District.   

For this summer, staff requests authorization for the General Manager to recruit and fill the 
following critical seasonal positions: 

• 2 Summer Helpers (2 Meter Operations);  and
• 14 Watershed Aides (4 Vegetation Management support, 4 Maintenance support, 2

Volunteer Program support, 3 Ranger support, and 1 Fisheries support)

FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost to hire the seasonal employees is estimated at $386,194 for FY 23/24.  Funding for 
summer helpers and watershed aides was included in the FY 23/24 budget. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Human Resources 
  

Vikkie Garay 
Human Resources Manager 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 



 Item Number:  09 
 Meeting Date:  04-04-2023 
 Meeting:  Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 | 2 

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Award of Contract No. 1994 for Furnishing and Delivery of Welded Steel Pipe to West Coast 
Pipe Linings Incorporated 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve a Resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute Contract 1994 with West 
Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated in the amount of $895,325.60 

SUMMARY 
On March 8, 2023, the District issued a Notice of Inviting Bids under Contract 1994 for the 
fabrication and delivery of 17,920 feet of 4, 6, 8, and 12-inch welded steel pipe for the 
anticipated Marin City and Canal District Capital Improvement pipeline replacement projects. 

On March 28, 2023, the District opened two bids for the subject contract. The lowest 
responsive and responsible bid was submitted by West Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated in the 
amount of $895,325.60. Staff is requesting that the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute Contract No. 1994 with West Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated at the contract bid 
amount of $895,325.60. West Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated has provided welded steel pipe 
for the District on prior contracts. Fabrication of the pipe is anticipated to take about 157 
working days with the pipe being delivered by November 17, 2023.    

DISCUSSION 
The welded steel pipe ordered under this contract is identified for the proposed pipeline 
replacement projects in the Marin City and Canal District communities of Marin County. The 
District anticipates award of Department on Water Resources (DWR) Grant funding for these 
two communities and this pipe materials contract was developed for cost sharing and budget 
tracking purposes so that the District will be able to use grant funds if they become available. It 
was determined that the District would need approximately 17,920 feet of 4, 6, 8, and 12-inch 
inch welded steel pipe to meet the needs for the proposed Marin City and Canal District 
pipeline replacement projects. If for any reason the projects do not proceed as anticipated, the 
District will be able to use the pipe for other purposes.  See attached map for planned pipeline 
infrastructure replacement in the two communities. 



 Item Number:  09 
 Meeting Date:  04-04-2023 

P a g e  2 | 2 
 

 
Budget:  
Budgeted Amount:  $895,325.60 
Budget Category:  N/A  
 
 
Project Implementation:  
Project Advertisement:  March 8, 2023 
Bid Opening:  March 28, 2023  
Project Award:  April 4, 2023  
Estimated Completion Date:  November 17, 2023  
Duration:  157 days 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
Funds for these materials will be paid for by the District, but if a grant for the for the Marin City 
and Canal District pipeline projects is received, the funds would be part of the $1,300,000 dollar 
match requirement for the anticipated grant award. As pipe is withdrawn from inventory, the 
cost of the pipe is capitalized to the specific project for which the pipe is installed.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Resolution 
2. Marin City and Canal District Pipeline Replacement Maps 

 

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Engineering 
 

 

 

 

 

 Crystal Yezman 
Director of Engineering 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 

 

 

 

 

 



Item Number: 09 
Attachment: 01 

Resolution  Page | 1 

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
AWARDING CONTRACT NUMBER 1994 FOR THE FURNISHING AND DELIVERY OF 

WELDED STEEL PIPE TO WEST COAST PIPE LININGS INCORPORATED 

WHEREAS, The District advertised Contract No. 1994 on March 8, 2023 for 
the fabrication and delivery of 17,920 feet of 4, 6, 8, and 12-inch welded steel pipe; 
and 

WHEREAS, the bid of $895,325.60 from West Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated 
was the lowest responsive bid received by the District; and  

WHEREAS, the purchased welded steel pipe will be used by the District on 
the upcoming Marin City and Canal District Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
pipeline replacement projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESOLVES that: 

1. The bid from West Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated is the lowest
responsive bid in the amount $895,325.60.

2. The General Manager is authorized and directed to execute said contract
on behalf of the District upon receipt of a performance bond, payment
bond, proof of insurance, and the executed contract for the work from
said bidder.

3. Upon complete execution of said contract, the bonds and/or checks of
the other bidders are to be returned to said other bidders, and all bids
other than that of West Coast Pipe Linings Incorporated are to be
rejected.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of April 2023 by the following vote of the 
Board. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 



Resolution  Page | 2  
 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Monty Schmitt 
President, Board of Directors 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Terrie Gillen 
Board Secretary 



UT

Ú

Marin City Pump Station PS-079

MARIN CITY TANK
TK-213

Maxar, Microsoft

³

0 200 400100 Feet

Marin City Infrastructure

Marin City Boundary
Pipelines

Marin City InfrastructureMarin City Infrastructure

Item Number; 09
   Attachment: 02



Maxar, Microsoft

³

0 140 28070 Feet

Marin City/San Rafael
Water Supply Resilience Project

Canal District
San Rafael

Canal Boundary
Pipelines

Data Source: DWR DAC Mapper, US Census Bureau, County of Marin



Item Number: 10 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 | 2 

Informational Item 

TO:  Board of Directors  

FROM: Crystal Yezman, Director of Engineering  

THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager  

DIVISION NAME: Engineering 

ITEM: Redwood Boulevard and Loma Alta Landslide Update 

SUMMARY 
Staff will provide an update on two recent landslides impacting water district operations, the 
Redwood Boulevard landslide and the Loma Alta landslide.    

DISCUSSION 
REDWOOD BOULEVARD LANDSLIDE 
On March 21, 2023, there was a slide reported on Redwood Boulevard, Novato, threatening 
two PG&E high pressure gas pipelines feeding Marin County and the North Marin Aqueduct 
which typically supplies water to North Marin Water District (NMWD) and Marin Municipal 
Water District (District) from the Sonoma County Water Agency.   

As a precaution, PG&E installed a bypass pipeline around the slide and the North Marin 
Aqueduct has been taken out of service.  PG&E has completed construction of a bypass line 
around the slide area.  CalTrans will be taking the lead on the slide repair once PG&E’s gas 
bypass line is tested and operational. Current estimates from Caltrans are that the slide repair 
will take months to complete.  

There are currently no impacts to water supply as North Marin Water District has switched 
water supply to Stafford Lake and Marin Municipal Water District has switched to its local 
reservoirs.  NMWD is monitoring the pipeline within the slide area and reports no pressure 
changes in the isolated section of aqueduct and no apparent deflection of the pipeline.  NMWD 
performed a flow test on March 27, 2023, flowing water at a rate of 2 cfs or 4,000 gpm for a 
total of 1.2 MG. NMWD will be formulating a 30 day and 6 month operations plan this week 
and will determine if they will include the use of the aqueduct after their Engineering staff 
reviews the current conditions and their inspections are completed.   



Item Number: 10 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

P a g e  2 | 2 

Marin Municipal Water District staff have been assisting NMWD with material specifications in 
the event that a bypass is needed and has been coordinating with NMWD staff to confirm 
intertie sites in the event that a water transfer is requested by NMWD from the MMWD.   

LOMA ALTA LANDSLIDE 
On January 17, 2023, Marin County Open Space District (MCOSD) notified the District of a 
landslide on a fire road within the Loma Alta preserve, near Fairfax.    The exact location is on 
the Old White Hill Grade at the intersection of Old Railroad Grade fire road and Sun Rise Fire 
Road (formally known as Gunsight fire road).   The District has a 27” concrete cylinder 
transmission line at this location, which is the main transmission line leaving San Geronimo 
Water Treatment Plant before connecting with the Fairfax transmission line.  Subsequent land 
surveying indicated no risk to the District’s pipeline, which was well inboard of the slide area.  

California Office of Emergency Services and the Federal Emergency Management Association 
(FEMA) made an emergency proclamation for storms from December 31, 2022 to January 31, 
2023 (FEMA-4683-DR-CA) and, MCOSD, as the lead agency submitted this slide for possible 
reimbursement.   While MCOSD will be the owner of the project, the District has requested to 
collaborate on the geotechnical evaluation and design of the retaining wall to ensure that the 
design will be adequate to protect the District’s transmission line and to ensure that the work 
proposed will not impact the transmission line during construction.   

On Monday March 21, 2023, MCOSD notified the District that the slide has worsened and is 
now fracturing further inboard of the fire road, getting closer to the District’s transmission 
line.  The District is expediting a design contract with Miller Pacific and will continue to monitor 
the condition of the slide.   

On Friday, March 24, 2023, District staff installed monuments to monitor for any additional 
slide movement that may occur and submitted a request for public assistance with 
CalOES/FEMA in the case of a pipeline failure.   Staff also plans on excavating a portion of the 
transmission main away from the slide to confirm pipeline diameters, monitoring periodically 
with audio leak detection devices, ordering reducer couplings in the event that a bypass is 
needed, and designing a project to install isolation valves at the intersection of this 27” 
transmission line with the Fairfax transmission line.    

FISCAL IMPACT 
To be determined.  Staff have set up accounts to track ongoing expenditures for possible 
reimbursement.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



Item Number: 11 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors 

P a g e  1 l 2

Approval Item 

TITLE 
Approve Resolution for Grant Funding Through the Federal WaterSMART Program 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve a resolution authorizing and directing the General Manager to sign and file, for and on 
behalf of the Marin Municipal Water District, a Grant Application for a grant from the United 
States Bureau of Reclamation under the “WaterSMART: Environmental Water Resources 
Projects for Fiscal Year 2023” program in the amount of $662,000, for the Marin Water Storage 
and Stream Enhancement Project, and to execute a cooperative agreement with the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation   

SUMMARY 
As part of the District’s ongoing efforts to secure grants to advance projects identified in the 
Strategic Water Supply Assessment Road Map, the District has submitted a proposal for studies 
to investigate expansion of local storage water supply with the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation’s (USBR) WaterSMART Program. A Board resolution supporting the grant is 
required as part of the application process.  

DISCUSSION 
On March 28th, 2023, the District submitted a grant application to the US Bureau of 
Reclamation’s “WaterSMART: Environmental Water Resources Projects for Fiscal Year 2023” 
solicitation.  In this most recent solicitation, the USBR has looked to fund projects which can 
both augment current water supplies and also demonstrate environmental merit or benefit.  
The project, as submitted to USBR, proposes to conduct pre-design work to understand the 
efficacy of expanding the capacity of one of three selected District’s reservoirs. If awarded, 
funds will be used to understand benefits and effects of increasing Kent, Nicasio, or Soulajule 
Reservoir through performing field investigations to (1) collect additional datasets to help 
validate models, (2) update hydraulic models of the dams and stream flows to simulate both 
increased impoundments and potential changes to stream flows, and (3) perform geotechnical 
investigations and engineering pre-design work to understand constructability of any reservoir 
modifications. The application also is requesting funding to expand the District’s current network 
of Passive Integrated Transponder (PIT) antenna stations, which continuously track fish throughout 
the watershed and provide critical insights on population bottlenecks and habitat use. 

Under the terms of this solicitation, the District has requested $662,000, and is offering a match 
of $729,125 in staff time and capital budget, for a total anticipated project cost of 
$1,391,125.00.  At this time, however, there is no fiscal impact as this proposal is only 
requesting an award.  If the award is subsequently offered by USBR, staff will bring it to the 
Board for full consideration of acceptance and any related fiscal impacts.   



Item Number: 11 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

P a g e  2 l 2  

The WaterSMART program requires an authorizing Board resolution for grant application.  
Attachment 1 of the staff report is the Grant Resolution that was submitted in draft form as 
part of the grant application and is being presented for approval by the Board at this meeting. 
Upon approval, the Board approved Grant Resolution will be submitted to the US Bureau of 
Reclamation to help complete the grant application package.    

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact for these actions to our FY23/24 budget.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
1. Proposed Resolution for US Bureau of Reclamation

DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED 

Watershed Division 
  

Shaun Horne 
Watershed Resources Manager 

Ben Horenstein 
General Manager 



Item Number: 11 
Attachment: 01 

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO.  

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM THE UNITED STATES BUREAU OF 

RECLAMATION WATERSMART PROGRAM AND ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
UNITED STATES BUREAU OF RECLAMATION FOR THE MARIN WATER STORAGE AND STREAM 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the District will submit a Grant Application to the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation under the “WaterSMART: Environmental Water Resources Projects for Fiscal Year 
2023” program, seeking grant funding to implement the Marin Water Storage and Stream 
Enhancement Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approves and supports this grant application; and 

WHEREAS, the District is able to provide matching funds and in-kind contributions in the 
amount and at the times necessary to complete the proposed Project and as specified in the 
funding plan.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Marin Municipal Water District Board of 
Directors hereby authorizes and directs the General Manager to sign and file, for and on behalf 
of the Marin Municipal Water District, a Grant Application for a grant from the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation under the “WaterSMART: Environmental Water Resources Projects for 
Fiscal Year 2023” program in the amount of $662,000, for implementation of the Marin Water 
Storage and Stream Enhancement Project, and  

BE IT RESOLVED that the General Manager of the Marin Municipal Water District or 
his/her designee is hereby authorized to conduct all negotiations and work with the United 
States Bureau of Reclamation to meet established deadlines for entering into a cooperative 
agreement.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of April, 2023, by the following vote of the Board of 
Directors.  

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 



_____________________________________ 
Monty Schmitt 
President, Board of Directors  

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Terrie Gillen,  
Board Secretary 



Item Number: 12 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 
Meeting: Board of Directors  

 

P a g e  1 | 2 
 

Informational Item  
 

TO:  Board of Directors  
 
FROM: Terrie Gillen, Board Secretary 
 
THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager  
 
DIVISION NAME: Communications & Public Affairs Department 
 
ITEM: Future Meeting Schedule and Agenda Items  

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Review of the upcoming Board of Directors and Committee meetings  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Meeting Schedule 
Below are the upcoming meetings of the Board of Directors and/or Committees: 
 
Internal Meetings 

 
• Tuesday, April 18, 2023  

Board of Directors’ Regular Bi-Monthly Meeting 
6:30 p.m.  
 

• Friday, April 21, 2023 
Operations Committee/ 
Board of Directors (Operations) Meeting 
9:30 a.m. 
 

• Thursday, April 27, 2023 
Finance & Administration Committee/ 
Board of Directors (Finance & Administration) Meeting 
9:30 a.m. 
 
 
 



Item Number: 12 
Meeting Date: 04-04-2023 

 

P a g e  2 | 2 
 

External Meeting 
 

• Friday, April 7, 2023  
North Bay Watershed Association 
9:30 a.m.  

 (Located at the Novato Sanitary District, 500 Davidson St., Novato and via Zoom) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 


	04-04-2023 Agenda
	AGENDA ITEMS
	FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS

	02- Staff Report - BOD Meeting Minutes
	02a-Attachment 1 - 03-14-2023 BOD Special Meeting Minutes - Closed Session 
	02b- Attachment 2 - 03-21-2023 BOD Meeting Minutes 
	03-Staff Report - Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall Project 
	03a-Attachment 1 - Resolution for Azalea Hill Trail Retaining Wall Project 
	03b-Attachment_2_-Azalea Hill Site Map
	04- Staff Report - Legislative Update AB 30 and SB 23
	04a-Attachment 1 - AB 30 ACWA Analysis
	04b-Attachment 2 - SB 23 ACWA Analysis
	04c-Attachment 3 - Legislative Positions
	05-Staff Report- Update Board Reserve and ADA Greivance Policies 
	05a-Attachment 1 - Redline of Changes to Reserve Policy
	05b-Attachment 2 - Proposed Updated Reserve Policy
	05c-Attachment 3 - Updated Board Policy 31- ADA Grievance
	06-Staff Report- Update GM and Risk Management Ccommittee Settlement Authority
	06a-Attachment 1 - Resolution - Settlement Authority 
	07-Staff Report - Lease 61 Consent to Assignment to VB Run LLC 
	07a-Attachment 1 - Lease 61 Request for Consent to Assignment
	07b-Attachment 2 - Lease 61 Draft Consent to Assignment
	08- Staff report - Seasonal Hires 2023-2024 
	09-Staff Report - Contract No. 1994 - Furnishing and Delivery of Welded Steel Pipe 
	09a-Attachment 1 - Resolution for CN  Welded Steel Pipe 
	09b-Attachment 2 - Welded Steel Pipe for Marin City & Canal District
	10-Staff Report - Landslide Update
	11-Staff Report- USBR Grant Funding - WaterSMART Program
	11a-Attachment 1 - Resolution to Authorize USBR Grant
	12-Staff Report - Future Meeting Schedule and Agenda Items



